**COPY**

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF MISSISSIPPI  
NO. 2006-CP-01880-LOA

**FILED**

AUG 24 2007

OFFICE OF THE CLERK  
SUPREME COURT  
COURT OF APPEALS

APPELLANT

APPELLEE

JEFFERY JONES  
V.  
STATE OF MISSISSIPPI

## STATEMENT OF THE ISSUES

[1.] WHETHER OR NOT DID JONES RECEIVED MORE THAN WHAT WAS OFFERED BY THE STATE ?

[2.] WHETHER OR NOT, WAS IT SENSIBLE THAT JONES BELIEVE HE WOULD RECEIVE OTHER THAN 10 YEARS UPON ACCEPTANCE OF HIS PLEA ?

[3.] WHETHER OR NOT, WAS JONES PLEA ILLEGAL AND/OR AMBIGUOUS ?

[4.] WHETHER OR NOT, IS IT LEGAL TO SUBJECT JONES TO THE MAXIMUM UPON VIOLATION OF HIS POST RELEASE SUPERVISION ?

[5.] WHETHER OR NOT COULD COURT VIOLATE AND REVOKE ALL FIVE OF JONES' CONSECUTIVE SENTENCES, THOUGH ONLY ONE CHARGE WAS PLACED UNDER POST RELEASE SUPERVISION ?

[6.] WHETHER OR NOT, IS THERE ALREADY A RELIEF TO THIS INJUSTICE, IF JONES IS CORRECT IN IMPLYING THAT HIS SENTENCE IS AMBIGUOUS ?

[7.] WHETHER OR NOT IS IT TOO LATE TO ANSWER JONES CLAIMS IF HE IS CORRECT THAT THERE IS A VIOLATION AS TO HOW HIS SENTENCE WAS CONSTRUED ?

# STATEMENT OF THE CASE

THIS APPEAL PROCEEDS FROM THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT OF HINDS COUNTY, MISSISSIPPI, AND A JUDGMENT OF CONVICTION FOR FOUR (4) SALES OF CONTROLLED SUBSTANCES AND (1) POSSESSION WITH THE INTENT, FIVE (5) YEARS POST RELEASE SUPERVISION AND \$3,000 FINE ON SEPTEMBER 26, 2001 BY PLEA.

HONORABLE BOBBY B. DELAUGHTER WAS PRESIDING CIRCUIT COURT JUDGE. HONORABLE GREGORY MILES WAS ASSISTANT DISTRICT ATTORNEY AND HONORABLE GLENN FOLSE WAS THE APPEALANT'S ATTORNEY OF RECORD. JEFFERY JONES IS PRESENTLY INCARCERATED WITH THE MISSISSIPPI DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS.

## FACTS

ON SEPTEMBER 17, 2001 (EXHIBIT F) THERE WAS A HEARING TO WITHDRAW GLENN FOLSE (ATTORNEY OF RECORD). DURING THIS HEARING JUDGE DELAUGHTER QUESTIONED APPEALANT'S AUNT ABOUT STATEMENTS TO THE JUDGE'S WIFE ABOUT JONES'S PLEA SENTENCE. AFTERWARDS, THE JUDGE CHARGED DEFENDANT'S AUNT WITH CONSTRUCTIVE CONTEMPT.

THE JUDGE DID NOT WITHDRAW ATTORNEY FOLSE FROM JONES'S CASE BUT SCHEDULE APPEALANT AND HIS AUNT (MS. BOBBIE WILLIAMS) FOR TRIAL SEPTEMBER 27TH, 2001

SEPTEMBER 17TH, 2001 TRANSCRIPT --- REFER IN EXHIBIT F (MARY ROGERS / COURT REPORTER): "THE COURT: SINCE THE TRIAL OF MR. JONES IS SET IN JACKSON NEXT THURSDAY, THE 27TH, UNLESS THE PAPERS YOU RECEIVE INDICATE OTHERWISE, THAT HEARING WILL BE IN JUDGE HILBURN'S COURTROOM AT 1800 THAT SAME DAY. DO YOU UNDERSTAND?"

JUDGE DELAUGHTER CONTINUE AS PRESIDING JUDGE AND PLACE JONES'S AUNT BEFORE JUDGE L. BRELAND HILBURN COURT ROOM.

ATTORNEY FOLSE MENTION OF ILLEGAL AND COERCIVE THEORIES AND STATEMENTS BETWEEN THE AUTHORITIES REGARDING JONES CASE TO HIM AND HIS AUNT. APPEALANT'S AUNT TRIED TO REMEDY THE SITUATION AS BEST AS SHE COULD BY SPEAKING TO THE JUDGE'S WIFE, WHO SHE HAD WORKED WITH IN THE MEDICAL FIELD. BECAUSE JONES'S ATTORNEY SUGGESTED HER TO HELP PAY A BRIBERY FEE OF \$30,000 UNDER THE TABLE.

JONES WAS BROUGHT TO COURT ON SEPTEMBER 25, 2001 TO ACCEPT THE PLEA, EARLY. DURING THE MIDDLE OF THE PLEA WHEN THE JUDGE QUESTION ABOUT "HAVE ANYONE MADE ANY PROMISES OR THREATS AGAINST YOU?" JONES TOLD SOME OF THE COERCIVE BRIBERY THREATS MEANTION TO HIM FROM ATTORNEY FOLSE. THE JUDGE TOLD FOLSE TO "DO NOT LEAVE HERE TODAY BEFORE CONFERING WITH YOUR CLIENT ABOUT TRIAL TOMORROW!"

THE NEXT DAY, SEPTEMBER 26, 2001 (EXHIBIT B), THE JUDGE QUESTION THE RESULTS AND EFFECT OF HIS DEMANDS TO JONES DURING THE BEGINNING OF THE PLEA HEARING (EXHIBIT B).

ATTORNEY FOLSE LED A EXPIAINATION THAT JONES PLEA WAS ONLY A TOTAL OF 18 YEARS INCLUDING THE 5 YEAR POST RELEASE TERM. SINCE APPEALANT'S PLEA WAS RE CONSTRUCTED FROM SIX (6) TO FIVE (5) CHARGES, STILL TOTALING 18 YEARS. JONES WOULD BENEFIT BY A SERVING A TIME SERVED LESS THEN 18 YEARS BY THE CONSTRUNG OF HIS 5 YEAR SUPERVISION TERM.

JONES SIGNED IT BECAUSE THE RECOMMENDATION SEEMED LOGICAL UPON REASONING. AFTERWARD JONES SIGNED THE PLEA AND THE JUDGE ACCEPTANCE OF IT. THE JUDGE THEN EXPLAIN A SENTENCE MORE THAN EXPECTED AND SURPRISINGLY DIFFERENT UPON REVOKATION OF THE POST RELEASE SUPERVISION. JONES FIGURE IT WAS TO LATE SINCE THE PLEA BEEN SIGNED, AND ACCEPTED.

JONES' AUNT (MS. BOBBIE WILLIAMS) HEARING WAS HELD ON 9-27-2001 BEFORE JUDGE HILBURN'S OFFICE WITH D.A. FAYE PETERSEN. JONES' AUNT TOOK A TAPE RECORDING OF FOLSE'S ILLZUAL STATEMENTS MADE TO HER DURING THE MEETING AT HIS OFFICE. JUDGE ~~HILBURN~~ AND D.A. FAYE PETERSEN DROP CHARGES AND APOLOGIZED, BUT JONES WAS ALREADY CONDUCTED BY THEN.

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT  
JONES CONSIDERS THAT HIS UNDERSTANDING WAS MORE WITHIN THE LAW THEN THE EXPIAINATION BY THE JUDGE'S CONSTRUNG JONES PETITION HAS SUGGESTED HIS SENTENCE IS ILLEGAL AS OF NOW, BUT IT'S PURPOSE IS TO CLARIFY OR MODIFY APPEALANT'S SENTENCE TO HIS FAVOR AS REQUESTED.

ALL OF THE INFORMATION IN THIS STATEMENT IS NOT TO NECESSARILY POINT TO OTHER ISSUES, NOT MEANTIONED. BUT IN ORDER TO GIVE THE COURTS A BETTER UNDERSTANDING OF THE SITUATION OF THE APPEALANT IN ORDER TO BE ABLE TO MAKE THE BEST JUDGEMENT POSSIBLE.

# ARGUMENT

[1] WHETHER OR NOT DID JONES RECEIVE MORE THAN WHAT WAS OFFERED BY THE STATE?

THE PLEA PETITION [EXHIBIT A] STATED A 18 YEAR TOTAL, 5 YEAR POST RELEASE SUPERVISION WITH A \$ 3000 FINE. THE JUDGE ACCEPTED THE PLEA BUT ILLEGALLY CONSTRUED THE POST RELEASE TERM TO AMOUNT TO A 23 YEAR SENTENCE. CONSIDERING THE EXPLANATION, CONSIDERING THE EXPIRATION OF THE CONSEQUENCES OF VIOLATING JONES' SUPERVISION TERMS, POSSIBLY MUCH MORE TIME TO SERVE.

JONES ARGUMENT IS THAT THE JUDGE STRAYED FROM THE PLEA WHICH WAS OFFERED, ACCEPTED AND SIGN OFF TO IN HIS EXPLANATION OF THE SENTENCE. [HE] CALCULATED AND STATED THE ENTIRE SENTENCE TO TOTAL 18 YEARS, IN ALL.

[EXHIBIT B] P. 23, line 5-9....

EACH OF THESE CASES AND EACH OF THE COUNTS THERE IN FOR WHICH YOU HAVE BEEN SENTENCED WILL RUN CONSECUTIVE TO AND NOT CONCURRENT WITH ONE ANOTHER FOR A TOTAL OF 18 YEARS.

[MISS. CODE ANN. § 47-7-34 (SUPP. 2003)]

THERE MUST FIRST BE A SENTENCE THAT INCLUDES A TERM OF INCARCERATION WITH A TERM OF POST RELEASE STARTING AFTER INCARCERATION AT THE END OF THE SENTENCE.

SO JONES PERCEIVED THAT SINCE THE TOTAL OF HIS SENTENCES WAS 18 YEARS, THE INCARCERATION AND POST RELEASE TERMS WOULD BE INCLUDED TO EQUAL THE 18 YEAR SENTENCE, AS STATED IN STATUTE 47-7-34.

JONES NOTICED, AS HE FIGURED, THAT 47-7-34 CONSTRUED THE INCARCERATION PERIOD AND POST RELEASE PERIOD AS SEPARATE TERMS. BUT BOTH TERM ARE CONSTRUED TO MAKE UP A SENTENCE.

JONES DO NOT UNDERSTAND WHY WASN'T HIS POST RELEASE TERM INCLUDED INTO THE 18 YEAR SENTENCE, AS STATED. THE APPEALANT CONSIDER HIS SENTENCE TO POSSIBLY BE ILLEGAL. HE RECEIVED SEPARATE SENTENCES ON EACH OF HIS FIVE (5) CHARGES THAT AMOUNT TO 18 YEARS. HIS POST RELEASE TERM WASN'T CONSIDER INTO THE 18 YEAR SENTENCE?

JONES UNDERSTOOD THE 47-7-34 STATUTE LITERALLY. SINCE IT STATES THE INCARCERATION TERM AND POST RELEASE TERM TO BE INCLUDED INTO A SENTENCE. THE APPEALANT AGREES CAUSE HE BELIEVED THAT THE POST RELEASE TERM WOULD BE INCLUDED INTO WHAT EVER THE SENTENCE TO BE. FROM JONES UNDERSTANDING, ALL TOGETHER, IT WAS TO BE 18 ALL TOGETHER.

IN SHORT, IF THERE'S A SENTENCE 2 THE INCARCERATION AND POST RELEASE TERMS HAVE ALREADY BEEN INCLUDED. BECAUSE UNDER THE 47-7-34 STATUTE, YOU MUST FIRST HAVE A SENTENCE. NEXT, THE SENTENCE WILL INCLUDE A POST RELEASE TERM AT THE END AFTER THE INCARCERATION TERM. SINCE THERE WAS A SENTENCE ON EACH OF JONES' CHARGES. THE CHARGE IN WHICH THE SUPERVISION APPLIES TO MUST BE INTERPRETED CONSIDER INTO THE SENTENCE.

[ AFTER, 754 50.2d at 1209 (P.5) ]

§ 47.7.33 IS A CONDITIONAL TERM NOT APART OF THE PRISON[TERM] SENTENCE AND IS NOT THEREFORE SUBJECT TO THE "TOTALITY" OF SENTENCE CONCEPT FOUND IN "47-7-34".

JONES WAS UNDER 47-7-34 AND IT SPEAK AS INCARCERATION AND THE POST RELEASE TERM MAKE UP THE SENTENCE.

SO SINCE THE POST RELEASE TERM IS VIEWED UNDER THE TOTALITY CONCEPT. THE APPELLANT COMPARES THIS UNDERSTANDING TO MEAN THAT THE POST RELEASE TERM MUST BE CONSTRUCTED INTO THE TOTALITY OF ALL THE SENTENCES, WHICH IS 18 YEARS. SINCE THE TRIAL JUDGE HANDED DOWN A SENTENCE VERBALLY, UNDER THE TOTALITY CONCEPT OF 47-7-34 OF 18 YEARS. BY LAW, THE POST RELEASE TERM SHOULD OF BEEN INCLUDED. OR EITHER DEDUCTED FROM THE 18 YEAR SENTENCE, RESULTING IN A PERIOD OF 13 YEARS OF TIME SERVING.

THE PLEA WAS FOR SIX (6) CHARGES (EXHIBIT: C)  
UNTIL THE DAY (9-26-01) APPEALANT ACCEPTED THE PLEA  
OF THE FIVE (5) CHARGES. THE OFFER WAS ALWAYS A SEN-  
TENCE OF 18 YEARS. EACH CHARGE HAD A SEPARATE SENTENCE.

JONES WAS NOT SURE HOW THE POST RELEASE TERM  
WAS TO BE INCLUDED INTO THE SENTENCE OF 18. OR WHY, CAUSE  
NO. 01-0-708 COUNT 2 WAS ENHANCED FROM 3 TO 6 YEARS?  
JONES FIGURED IT WAS DONE IN ORDER TO EASILY SUBTRACT  
HIS 5 YEAR TERM OF POST RELEASE FROM THE LARGER 6 YEAR  
SENTENCE. THIS EVENT WAS MENTIONED IN JONES' AFFIDAVIT (EXHIBIT: H).

JONES UNDERSTOOD EACH OFFER TO BE A SEPARATE  
SENTENCE. EACH OFFER COULDN'T BE VIEWED TO BE JUST  
A INCARCERATION TERM? IF SO, THEN THE REST OF THE  
CHARGES ARE INCOMPLETE BECAUSE OF SUPPOSIBLY MISS-  
ING TERMS OF POST RELEASE.

IF THAT'S THE CASE? IT WOULD EQUAL IN A 43 YEAR  
SENTENCE COMPRISED BY A 18 YEAR TERM OF INCARCERATION  
AND MISSING A 25 YEAR TERM OF POST RELEASE AT THE END.  
THE JUDGE STATED A TOTAL OF 18 YEARS THOUGH.

NOTICE THE JUDGE DID NOT REFER TO THE OFFER OF EACH  
CHARGE AS TERMS BUT MORE AS SENTENCES.

[EXAMPLES FROM EXHIBIT: B] P. 24 LINE 2-4000 AND THESE  
SENTENCES HAVE ALREADY BEEN ORDERED TO RUN CONSECUTIVE TO  
A NOT CONCURRENT WITH ONE ANOTHER.

P. 24 LINE 9000 A FURTHER

PORTION OF YOUR SENTENCE IN 000

ALSO SENTENCE TO THREE YEARS AND A \$ 3,000.00

AS MENTION SEVERAL TIMES BY THE 47-7-34 STATUTE. CLEARLY,  
THE POST RELEASE TERMS MUST BE INCLUDED WITH IN THE SENTENCE.

[ JERRIE WATTS V. EDDIE LUCAS, 394 SO. 2D  
903; 1981 MISS. LEXIS 1951 ANDERSON V. STATE, 288  
SO. 2D 852 (MISS. 1974)... RESOLVED ALL AMBIGUITIES  
IN FAVOR OF THE ACCUSED. ]

IN BOTH CASES THE JUDGE STATED SOME CONFLICT-  
ING PHRASES THAT COULD BE VIEW AMBIGUOUS IN NATURE,  
AS LIKE IN JONES CASE.

THE APPEAL COURTS HEID JUDGES, D.A.s AND  
ANY SUCH UNDER HEAVY BURDENS TO UP HOLD THEIR CONTRACT-  
UAL DEALINS AND PROMISES, EITHER WRITTEN OR ORAL. AS LONG  
AS IT IS MADE DURING SENTENCING AND IN FAVOR FOR THE  
ACCUSED, REGARDLESS!

JONES POINT'S THE ATTENTION OF THE AMBIGUITY  
AT THE STATEMENT MADE BY THE JUDGE. "EACH OF THESE CASES  
AND EACH OF THE COUNTS THERE IN FORCE WHICH YOU HAVE BEEN  
SENTENCE WILL RUN CONSECUTIVE TO AND NOT CONCURRENT  
WITH ONE ANOTHER FOR A TOTAL OF 18 YEARS." ]

IT SEEMS CLEAR THE JUDGE CONSIDERED THE APPEALANT  
TOTAL CASES AND COUNTS BUT ONLY CAME UP WITH A 18 YEAR  
SENTENCE IN TOTALITY. WHO KNEW THE JUDGE'S EXACT ATTEN-  
TIONS. BUT EITHER OR, REGARDLESS OF MIX MESSAGES. IN THE  
INTEREST OF LAW, HIS AMBIGUOUS PHRASES MUST BE  
CONSTRUED IN APPEALANTS FAVOR.

JONES'S ORDER CONCERNING HIS SUPERVISION TERMS IS IN ERROR BECAUSE OF THE AMBIGUITY MADE WHILE SENTENCING. JONES SUPERVISION ORDER [EXHIBIT 6] STATES NO, NO TERM OF TIME OR TYPE OF PUNISHMENT UPON VIOLATION OF HIS POST RELEASE SUPERVISION TERMS. IT IS BLANK IN THAT MARGIN BECAUSE OF THE AMBIGUITY? SINCE THE SENTENCE IS ONLY 3 YEARS AND AFTER SERVING THE THREE (3) YEARS, INCARCERATED. IT SEEM ILLEGAL TO TRY TO SUBJECT APPEALANT TO BE RESENTENCED TO ANY, MORE UPON VIOLATION OF HIS POST RELEASE SUPERVISION!

ALL THESE SITES AND CASES POINT TO A ILLEGAL AND AMBIGUOUS SENTENCE. JONES WAS SUPPOSE TO BENEFIT FROM THE POST RELEASE STATUS.

[ CARTER V. STATE, 754 S.O. 2D 1207, 1208 (MISS. 2000) ... THE PROGRAM CREATES A SPIT SENTENCING OPTION FOR REPEAT OFFENDERS. ]

INSTEAD IT HAS BEEN USE TO ILLEGALLY SUFFER APPEALANT, WHICH IS MORE THAN HARMLESS. JONES PRAYS THAT THIS COURT CLARIFY THE SENTENCE FAIRLY AND RIGHTEOUSLY IN APPEALANT'S FAVOR.

A 18 YEAR SENTENCE WITH A 5 YEAR TERM OF POST RELEASE SUPERVISION IS MORE FAVORABLE THEN A 18 YEAR SENTENCE WITHOUT IT, BECAUSE BOTH TERMS ARE ADDED TO FIGURE THE TOTAL SENTENCE. IF THE TOTAL SENTENCE IS 18 AS STATED BY THE JUDGE, THEN AFTER SUBTRACTING THE 5 YEAR TERM OF SUPERVISION, IT WOULD LEAVE A 13 YEAR TERM OF INCARCERATION. ....

..... IF 5 YEARS IS ADDED TO THE 18 YEARS, THEN IT IS A TOTAL OF 23 YEARS.

BY THE JUDGE STATING A TOTAL OF 18 YEARS, THE COURT WILL HAVE TO DECIDE WHICH WAY TO RULE ON THIS AMBIGUITY. REGARDLESS OF STATE OR FEDERAL, THE LAW REQUIRES AMBIGUITIES TO BE RULED IN THE DEFENDANT FAVOR.

IT WOULD SEEM TO VIOLATE JANE'S CONSTITUTIONAL RIGHTS. CONSIDER EVEN THE JUDGE WAS CONFUSED TO A DEGREE, BECAUSE OF THE VAGUELY DESCRIBES PLEA RECOMMENDATIONS.

[ US v. BALINT, 201 F3D 928 (7th Cir. 2000) > A CRIMINAL STATUS IS UNCONSTITUTIONALLY VAGUE IF IT DOES NOT GIVE A PERSON AN ORDINARY INTELLIGENCE A REASONABLE OPPORTUNITY TO KNOW WHAT IS PROHIBITED. ]

NOWAY JONES COULD BE EXPECTED A AMOUNT OTHER THAN 18 YEARS, WHICH WAS STATED BY THE COURT. ANY ORDINARY NON-LAYMEN OF THE LAW, COULD OR WOULD BE EXPECTED THE SAME UPON VIEW BY A WISE REASONING.

ALL THE INFORMATION STATED, FAVORS JANE'S RECEIVED MUCH MORE BY PLEA OR LAW, DEFERRED BY THE STATE.

[ 2 ] WHETHER OR NOT, WAS IT SENSIBLE THAT JONES BELIEVE HE WOULD RECEIVE OTHER THAN 18 YEARS UPON ACCEPTANCE OF HIS PLEA?

IN THE BEGINNING TRANSCRIPTS OF (EXHIBIT: B) THE JUDGE IS QUESTIONING THE RESULTS BY THE ACTIONS OF THE STATEMENTS MADE BY JONES ON 9-25-01, BEFORE THE 2nd HEARING ON 9-26-01. JONES WAS NOT ABLE TO ACQUIRE A TRANSCRIPT FROM THE HEARING HELD ON 9-25-01 (EXHIBIT: F). OBVIOUSLY FROM JUDGE'S STATEMENTS, SOMETHING TRANSPIRED THE DAY BEFORE THE LAST HEARING HELD ON 9-26-01.

[ P. 1, LINE 1-3: " ALL RIGHT.. MR. JONES, DID YOU HAVE A CHANCE YESTERDAY AFTERNOON TO CONFER WITH YOUR ATTORNEY? " ] EXHIBIT: B

NOTICE THAT THE JUDGE STATED THE EXACT TIME OF THE EVENT " YESTERDAY AFTERNOON " WHILE QUESTIONING JONES. THE JUDGE NARROW THE EVENT DOWN TO THE DAY AND TIME OF DAY.

[ P. 1, LINE 20-24: " ALL RIGHT, AND HAVE YOU GIVEN IT FURTHER THOUGHT OVERNIGHT --- AND IT'S NOW 11 O'CLOCK --- HAVE YOU GIVEN IT THOUGHT OVERNIGHT AND THIS MORNING AS TO WHAT YOU WANT TO DO? " ] EXHIBIT: B

IF THE LAST TIME APPEALANT WAS BEFORE / OR AT COURT WAS ON SEPTEMBER 17, 2001 AND SEPTEMBER 26, 2001 BY MS. MARY ROGERS [COURT REPORTER] RECORDS (EXHIBIT: F). THAT WAS OVER A WEEK, SINCE LAST APPEARANCE. WHY WOULD THE JUDGE QUESTION ABOUT "YESTERDAY AFTERNOON, AND NOW BETWEEN OVERNIGHT; UNTIL NOW, "?

ALL THE QUESTIONING EARLY ON / SUPPORT THE AFFIDAVIT (EXHIBIT: H), BECAUSE JONES WAS BROUGHT TO COURT TO ACCEPT THE FIRST PLEA OFFER (EXHIBIT: L). JONES DENIED THAT PLEA WHILE STATING THE MANY ILLEGAL AND EXERCISE THREATS MEANTION TO HIM ABOUT BRIBERY INFLUENCES. THESE INFLUENCES ARE THE BASES IN WHICH JONES WERE MOTIVATED, AS STATED BY APPEALANT'S TRIAL ATTORNEY.

THE JUDGE CUT SHORT JONES'S ACCUSATIONS THEN MOVED THE SCHEDULE FOR TRIAL TOMORROW (9-26-01). THAT'S THE REASON FOR THE EARLIER, IRRELENT QUESTIONING AT THE START OF THE HEARING. JONES ATTORNEY IMPLIED IN THE AFFIRMITIVE THAT APPEALANT'S OFFER WOULD BE CONSTRUED MORE FAVORABLE FROM THE REARRANGING OF HIS PLEA. SINCE APPEALANT UNDERSTOOD NO MORE THEN A SENTENCE OF 10 YEARS, HE SIGNED AND TRUSTED HIS ATTORNEY ADVICE.

JONES WISH, HOPE, BELIEVE AND EXPECTED THE ENTIRE SENTENCE TO TOTAL NO MORE THAN 18 YEARS, IF ACCEPTED. THAT WAS THE RECOMMENDATION BY PISA, BY LAW AND BY THE JUDGE'S TOTALITY OF ALL THE CASES AND CHARGES.

IT SEEMS TO BE SENSIBLE THAT JONES BELIEVED HE WOULD RECEIVE ANYTHING OTHER THAN 18 YEARS UPON ACCEPTANCE OF HIS PISA.

[ ESTELLE V. GAMBLE, 429 US 97, 50 LED 2D 251, 97 S CT. 285 (1976) - DETENTION BEYOND THE TERMINATION OF THE SENTENCE CONSTITUTES CRUEL AND UNUSUAL PUNISHMENT WHEN IT RESULTS FROM "DELIBERATE INDIFFERENCE" TO THE PRISONERS INTEREST IN LIBERTY. ]

[3] WHETHER OR NOT, WAS JONES PLEA ILLEGAL AND/OR AMBIGUOUS?

JONES WILL EXPLAIN HIS UNDERSTANDING OF THE CASES AND CITES ALONG WITH STATUTES PLUS EXAMPLES WHICH HAS HIM CONFUSED AS TO WHY HE BELIEVES HIS SENTENCE'S MIGHT BE VIEWED AS AMBIGUOUS.

[ THE TOTAL NUMBER OF YEARS INCARCERATION PLUS THE TOTAL NUMBER OF YEARS POST RELEASE SUPERVISION SHALL NOT EXCEED THE MAXIMUM SENTENCE AUTHORIZED TO BE IMPOSED BY LAW FOR THE FELONY COMMITTED. ] + 47-7-34

SO JONES IS WELL WITHIN THE MAXIMUM IN REGARD OF WHAT THE SENTENCE FIRST CARRIED. [BUT ONCE A COURT EXERCISES IT'S OPTION TO IMPOSE A DEFINITE SENTENCE IT CAN NOT SUBSEQUENTLY SET THAT SENTENCE ASIDE AND IMPOSE A GREATER SENTENCE.]

(LEONARD V. STOL 271 S.D. 2d 445 [MS. 1973])

[ UPON A DEFENDANT'S VIOLATION OF HIS PROBATION IT WAS WELL WITHIN THE COURT'S POWER TO REVOKE AND REINSTATE ANY OR ALL OF THE ORIGINAL SENTENCE IF IT DEEMED SUCH AN ACTION NECESSARY. COURT COULD SENTENCE A DEFENDANT TO THE FULL ORIGINAL SENTENCE IF NECESSARY. BRUNSON V. STOL 796 S.D. 2d 284 [MS. CT. APP. 2001] JOHNSON V. STOL 1802 S.D. 2d 110 [MS. CT. APP. 2001] ]

[ ONCE THE TERM OF COURT HAS ENDED AT WHICH A JUDGEMENT OF SENTENCE IS HANDED DOWN, THE GENERAL RULE IS THAT THE TRIAL COURT HAS LOST ITS AUTHORITY TO ALTER OR AMEND THE TERM OF PUNISHMENT AFFORDED TO THE GUILTY DEFENDANT. (MISSISSIPPI COMM'N OF JUDICIAL PERFORMANCE V. RUSSELL, 691 S.O.2D 929, 943 (MISS. 1997)) ]

[ ADDITIONALLY, THERE IS THE WELL ESTABLISHED PROPOSITION THAT ANY ATTEMPT TO ALTER THE TERMS OF PUNISHMENT IN ORDER TO INCREASE THE SEVERITY OF THE PUNISHMENT ONCE THE SENTENCE ORIGINALLY ANNOUNCED BECOMES FINAL, IS NOT PERMITTED UNDER CONSIDERATION ARISING UNDER THE DOUBLE JEOPARDY CLAUSE OF THE CONSTITUTION OF THE UNITED STATES (LEONARD V. ST., 271 S.O.2D 445, 447 (MS. 1973); JOHNSON V. ST., 753 S.O.2D 449 (PP13-14) (MS. CT. APP. 1999)) ]

MOST OF ALL THESE CASES MAINLY DEAL WITH PROBATION BUT POST RELEASE IS GOVERN BY THE SAME PROCEDURES FOR REVOCATION OF PROBATION AND IMPOSITION OF A SUSPENDED SENTENCE.

MS. CODE ANN. 47-7-34 (REV. 2000) (2)

AS A MATTER OF FACT, SOMEONE UNDER POST RELEASE SUPERVISION HAS THAT STATUS REVOKED, THE CIRCUIT JUDGE MAY LAUSE THE SENTENCE IMPOSED TO BE EXECUTED OR MAY IMPOSE ANY PART OF THE SENTENCE WHICH HAVE BEEN IMPOSED AT THE TIME OF THE CONVICTION. 1995 MISS. LAWS (H. 590, § 11, CODIFIED AS MISS. CODE ANN. § 47-7-37 (REV. 2000))

SO JONES'S INTERPRETATION OF THIS STATUS CONCLUDE OR AFFIRM HIS DOUBTS THAT IT'S ILLEGAL TO SUBJECT JONES TO THE MAXIMUM SENTENCE UPON VIOLATION OF HIS POST RELEASE, ESPECIALLY AFTER THE COURT EXERCISED IT'S AUTHORITY TO HAND DOWN A DEFINITE SENTENCE OF 12 YEARS WITH JONES.

HUNT V. ST. 1874 SO. 2d 4429 (MS. 2004) - WAS SENTENCE TO 5 YEARS INCARCERATION AND 5 YEARS POST RELEASE SUPERVISION, TOTALING A 10 YEAR SENTENCE. HUNT WILL BE SUBJECT TO 5 YEARS UPON VIOLATION OF HIS POST RELEASE SUPERVISION.

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