JEFFREY EARL JONES

APPELLANT

FILED

VS.

NOV 15 2007

NO. 2006-CP-1880

OFFICE OF THE CLERK SUPREME COURT COURT OF APPEALS

STATE OF MISSISSIPPI

APPELLEE

BRIEF FOR THE APPELLEE

APPELLEE DOES NOT REQUEST ORAL ARGUMENT

JIM HOOD, ATTORNEY GENERAL

BY: JOHN R. HENRY

SPECIAL ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL

MISSISSIPPI BAR NO

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL POST OFFICE BOX 220 JACKSON, MS 39205-0220 TELEPHONE: (601) 359-3680

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

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

THAT THE CIRCUIT COURT DID NOT ERR IN DENYING RELIEF ON THE PRISONER'S MOTION IN POST - CONVICTION RELIEF

ARGUMENT

THAT THE CIRCUIT COURT DID NOT ERR IN DENYING RELIEF ON THE PRISONER'S MOTION IN POST - CONVICTION RELIEF

A Circuit Court may deny relief on a prisoner's motion in post - conviction relief without an evidentiary hearing where "... it plainly appears from the face of the motion, any annexed exhibits and the prior proceedings in the case that the movant is not entitled to any relief." Miss. Code Ann. Section 99-39-11(2) (Rev. 2007). This Court will not disturb a Circuit Court's decision to deny relief on a motion in post - conviction relief absent a showing that the Circuit Court's decision was clearly erroneous. *Epps v. State*, 926 So.2d 242 (Miss. Ct. App. 2005).

As pointed out by the Circuit Court, the motion filed by the prisoner which is the subject of the instant appeal was a successive motion. As such, it was properly denied for that reason. Miss. Code Ann. Section 99-39-23(6) (Rev. 2007). Moreover, the prisoner's motion was time - barred. Miss. Code Ann. Section 99-39-5(2) (Rev. 2007). He was convicted on 26 September 2001; the motion involved in this appeal was filed on 13 March 2006. This filing was far past the expiration of the time in which to file such a motion.

The prisoner did not assert some cause for relief from the operation of the successive writ bar and the statute of limitations. He does not do so here. But even if he had done so, no relief would be available to him under the facts here. The record demonstrates that the prisoner sought post - conviction relief some time ago, before he filed the instant one. It was in that motion that he should have raised his complaints about his sentence. For aught the record shows, he may well have done so.

In any event, while it may be that there are certain exceptions to the application of the successive writ bar and the statute of limitations, these exceptions surely cannot be available where one has previously sought and been denied post - conviction relief. Any complaint about the alleged illegality of the prisoner's sentence could have been addressed in the original post - conviction proceeding. Regardless of whether the prisoner brought his present complaints about his sentence in the original motion, he was bound to have done so. The State invokes the doctrines of collateral estoppel or res judicata with respect to these claims: They could and should have been raised in the original motion in post - conviction relief.

In the event the Court should consider the prisoner's complaints, notwithstanding the foregoing reasons why it should not, there is no merit in them.

As to the claim that the sentencing judge effectively imposed a twenty - three year

sentence, rather than an eighteen - year sentence, by ordering a five - year term of post - release supervision, this is simply untrue. But even if it were true that the court imposed a twenty - three year sentence, it would have been well within its authority to do so.

Under Section Miss. Code Ann. 47-7-34 (Rev. 2004), the limitation concerning a "to serve" sentence and a period of post - release supervision is that the two periods may not exceed the maximum imposable prison sentence. Here, the prisoner could have been sentenced up to thirty years on each of the charges he pled guilty to. Miss. Code Ann. Section 41-29-139(a)(1), (b)(1) (Rev. 2005). What he was sentenced to, though, was a series of three - year sentences, to be served consecutively. Taken either in sum or individually, they did not come close to reaching the statutory maximum, and in no way did the provision of the five - year period of post - conviction relief offend the limitation set out in Section 47-7-34. In no way did the provision of a five - year period of post - release supervision amount to an illegal sentence. Even if it is assumed that the Circuit Court imposed a twenty - three year sentence, such a sentence would have been well within the maximum sentence allowed by law for any one of the prisoner's felonies.

The prisoner also appears to contend that the Circuit Court imposed more in sentencing than the State recommended. This is not supported by the record, though. The only aspect of the sentence that was not part of the recommendation by the State was the requirement imposed by the trial court that the prisoner undergo mandatory alcohol and drug dependency treatment. (R. Vol. 1, pg. 76). In any event, a recommendation by the State with regard to sentencing is not binding upon a court. The prisoner knew this. (R. Vol. 1, pg. 83). The prisoner also specifically knew that the State would recommend a period of five years on post - release supervision. (R. Vol. 1, pg. 83).

The prisoner then contends that there could be problems with revoking post - release supervision. However, it does not appear from this record that the prisoner has been revoked. These concerns of the prisoner should not be addressed until his post- release supervision is revoked.

The prisoner claims that the sentences imposed by the Circuit Court are ambiguous. They are not. The court imposed separate sentences for each of the prisoner's felonies, to be served consecutively. The court's intention is very clear.

CONCLUSION

The Court should affirm the Circuit Court's denial of post - conviction relief.